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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT ANDORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICALAPPEARANCE

General Butler located his house on a low knoll at the eastern outskirts of Carrollton, still at
that time known as Port William. The date of c. 1819 has been given for the house; or it perh”js
was built shortly after his marriage in 1817. The siting of the bouse would allow Adgws north-
ward across the nearby Ohio River toward Indiana, as well as westward toward the town, which
lies at the junction of the Ohio & Ky. Rivers, ~i%arently, how™er Butler preferred, to jgporethe
river view (in spite of his poignant poem concerning a boatsman's horn) and oriented the

house toward the town and highroad which still passes the south entrance.

The house was originally U-shaped (perhaps with a service wing at the northeast comer, as
shown on the 1883 Atlas). The two main wings extended to the north, with a courtyard, bet-
ween open toward the river. According to tradition this court was inspired by Spanish or
French New Orleans patios, observed by Butler during his campaigns with Jackson. It
certainly is an unusual feature for an early Kentudgr house, although not unique.

Equally unusual is the presence of two symmetrical facades at right angles, each with its
central Palladian feature, one on the west facing toward town, the other to the south facing
the high road that extends along the river (now U.S. Route 42) (see photos 1 & 3).

The treatment of the entrances within the Palladian framework of an arched double door with
sidelights is effective, and also somewhat unusual; in most cases the fanlight, whether semi-
circular or elliptical, extends over the sidelights as well. Here there seems to be a slight
incongruity of scale between the complex entrances, with their keystones, molded frames,
and comer rosettes, and the ample proportions but plain frames of the flanking windows.

The south and west fronts are Flemish bond with the queen closers at the corners. The jack
arches are splayed. Two blind shuttered windows at the south end of the west front

have been opened to flank the original fireplace between them, but the openings do not
quite coincide with the original jack arches, which still exist in the wall. The north room

on the west side is slightly smaller than the southwest room so the west front is not altogether
symmetrical, although it appears to be so inperspective. The fenestration of the east side

has been partially altered — a single opening in the dining room widened into a double one;
other changes relate to the removal of the service wing. Curiously, there are no openings
facing the river view to the north,although double doors lead to the original open court from
the south entrance hall, and single ones from the west hall and dining room.

In the twentiethcentuiythe southern part of the court was closed in to provide a high-ceUinged
room connecting the west hall, the south hall, and dining room, A wall rmsstly of glass faces

the north, with a scalloped window in the gable. The space between the wings of the U have
been filled in with a roof that is not is not visible except from the north (see photo 4).

(continued)
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The west entrance is approached by means of two large stone steps; those on the south have
been replaced with concrete, although several stone steps that led down to the road (origi-
nally at a higher level than at present) still are in place at the end of the walk.

The interior of the house consists basically of seven rooms, all fairly square except for the
narrow west hall. The south hall, about 18 feet deep, is flanked by two parlors with pairs

of windows facing south and mantels at the west and east ends (the west parlor has the two
additional modern windows on the west side mentioned above). The west hall is barely wider
than the Palladian entrance feature, where double doors and fanlight are actually slightly
narrower than those in the south front. The chamber at the northwest end of the U has
windows only on the west side and formerly a mantel on the north.

The presumed original dining room north of the east parlor has its fireplace on the north, with
a possibly original cupboard to one side. The kitchen at the northeast end of the U has an

open rough-cut beam ceiling several feet lower than the 11 or 12 feet of the other rooms. This
permits a loft room above, with a "tent" roof, reached by a small enclosed stairs. The

large kitchen fireplace is gone. Probably this was only the winter kitchen; the summer Kitchen
would have been in the demolished service wing.

The woodwork of the house is consistent and virtually intact throughout. There are slight
variations in the moldings from room to room, although each room is uniform throughout
(except, in the case of the door from the east parlor to the dining room, which appears to
have been inserted later). The difference between rooms is not clearly hierarchical,
variations being slight and in no apparent sequence.

Throughout, there are combinations of robust reeding, shallow panels, and concentric corner
blocks. The motifs are set in the two Palladian-motif entrances, whose "pilasters™ have con-
cave reeding. Other portions of their door and window frames are panelled and there are
wooden "keystones" above. The doors throughout are fairly low and wide, with six panels.

The west parlor has reeded frames, the east parlor panelled. The window openings have

raked, panelled sides, and there are two panels under the parlor windows. There is chair-railin
throughout, with horizontal grooves located at different levels in various rooms. The mantels
are quite plain, slightly different, of the shelf-and-frame type. None of the mill work is
obtrusive; all is harmonious and precise. All trim is painted white at present. Ash floors
survive in the parlors.

GPO 892 455
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In spite of the encroachment of other houses in the vicinity (one of which necessitated
the elimination of the service wing), the Butler house remains prominent, situated
between the built-up section of "downtown” Carrollton and the handsome houses set
back on large lots that line Highland Avenue to the east. Among them all, this
"unpretending one-story house,” as an 1878 biographer put it during the General's
lifetime, easily and elegantly holds its own.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

A prominent and popular military and political figure in the State and nation throughout much
of his long life. General William O. Butler (1791-1880) fought in the War of 1812 under
General Andrew Jackson, as well as in the Mexican War under General Zachary Taylor. As
a result of his distinguished military record, Butler had great political opportunities. Butler
served in boththe State legislature and inCongress. He was the Democratic candidate for
Governor of Kentucky in 1844 and Democratic candidate for Vice-President of the United

States in 1848. A unionist, although a slaveholder, Butler was also a Kentucky delegate to the
1861 Peace Convention in Washit™on. Not only was General Butler known as a military figure,

politician, and lawyer, but also as a poet of some talent. Probably between 1818 and 1820
he built for himself, above the banks of the Ohio River, the fine and unusual Federal-style
house being nominated, in which he lived until his death more than fifty years later.

William Orlando Butler, born in 1791 in Jessamine County, Kentucky, was the son of Percival
Butler and Mildred Hawkins Butler (a sister-in-law of Colonel John Todd, Killed at the Battle
of the Blue Licks in 1782). Percival Butler came to Kentucky in 1784. He had served under
GeneralsWashington and Lafayette in the Revolutionary War. Percival Butler was one of the
brothers who served in the Revolution of whom General Lafayette said "when he wanted some-
thing well done, he ordered a Butler to do it,” (D.A.B., p. 371).He also served as the first
Adjutant General of Kentucky, continuing in that position for almost twenty years. In 1796
Butler moved to the confluence of the Kentucky and Ohio Rivers at what is now Carrollton,
Kentucky, where he established the Butler homestead on the south side of a hill on a large
farm nearby (see below).

William O. Butler attended Transylvania University in Lexington, Kentuclg®. Immediately
upon graduation in 1812, he began the study of law under Robert Wickcliffe. a prominent
Fayette’County lawyer . With the outbreak of the war against Great Britian, Butler inter-
rupted his studies to enter the army as a corporal. He was attached to Winchester’s army
which was sent to the relief of Fort Wayne. Butler also took part in both battles of the River
Raisin on January 18 and 22, 1813, when the British and Indians surprised and essentially
slaughtered the American forces. Although Butler escaped death, unlike many of his com-
rades, he was wounded and taken as a prisoner to Fort Niagara. When paroled months later,
Butler returned to Kentucky and raised a company of men which he led under Jackson against

Pensacola. Butler played an important part in the Battles of NewOrleans, leading -a night

(continued)
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attack on the British General Packenham (December 23, 1814), enabling the American de-
fenses to be established at Chaumette. He also participated in the major conflict on January
8, 1815. After the battle Butler supported General Jackson in his disagreement with New
Orleans authorities. General Jackson recognized Butler’s distinguished services by naming
him to a position on his staff in 1816, which was formerly held by Butler's brother, Thomas,
and was greatly disappointed at the loss of such an able military figure when Butler resigned
from the army in 1817.

Upon his resignation from the army, Butler returned to Kentucky where he resumed his study
of law. Butler settled in Port William (now Carrollton) where his family had moved in 1796.
(The site of the Butler family homestead is the present site of the General William O. Butler
State Park. Located in the park is the house built in 1825 by Thomas Butler, William's
brother, on the site of the house built in 1796 by their father, Percival.) WHIliam O. Butler
married Eliza J. Todd, the daughter of General Robert Todd of Fayette County. Probably
about 1819 he began construction of the present house overlooking the Ohio River on what is
now Highland Avenue, but was then the eastern outskirts of town. Butler enjoyed a successful
law practice as well as representing Gallatin County (incorporating the present Carroll County)
in the Kentucky legislature in 1817, 1819, and 1821. According to the D.A.B. he became
"one of the most prominent and best-liked Democrats in the state" (p. 371). In 1830 he

was elected to Congress, serving four years. At the end of his term in 1844 he ran as the
Democratic candidate for Governor of Kentucky and according to the 1878 Biographical
Encyclopedia; "was probably the most able and popular man the Democracy had ever run for
that office” (p. 122). Although he drew a large number of Whig votes, he was defeated by
William Owsley. (See the National Register form on Pleasant Retreat, Owsley's house near
Lancaster, Garrard County, Kentucky, listed May 6, 1975.)

At the beginning of the Mexican War in 1846 William Butler was appointed Major-General of
Volunteers, and was second in command at the battle of Monterey where he was wounded.

A year later he joined General Winfield Scott's command at Mexico City and in 1848 succeeded
him as chief commander of the army, which position he held until peace was established.

After the war he received two swords in recognition of his service at Monterey, one from
Congress and the other from the people of Kentucky. In the 1848 Presidential election he was
the Democratic candidate for Vice-President on the ticket with General Lewis Cass (former
Secretary of War under President Jackson). Butler did not take an active part in the campaign
and was defeated. After the war Butler did not resume his law practice, but concentrated his

efforts on farming.

(continued)
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Although Butler was a slaveholder, he was a staunch unionist and opposed the extension of
slavery. He was a Kentucky delegate to the 1861 Washington Peace Conference. (The Con-
ference, called by the Virginia legislature, was a last attempt at compromise. The
conference was called in hopes that it might propose revisions to the Federal Constitution
which might appeal to the seceding states, but the attempt failed.)

In his early years, Butler was a poet of some renown. Many of his poems appeared in State
journals. A book of his poems called The Boatman's Horn and other Poems was published
in 1835. General Butler died in August 1880.

In 1888 Ju”e Richard Masterson purchased the house. Judge Masterson was a descendent
of one of the first settlers of Carrollton (see the National Register form on the Masterson
House, Carrollton, Carroll County, Kentucky, listed on the National Register July 1, 1975).
The house is now owned by his granddaughter, Mary Masterson.

Not only is the U-shaped floor plan unusual, but the almost completely intact exterior and
interior woodwork varies with remarkable subtlety from room to room. The rooms ihemselves*-
including two parlors flanking the rear south hall, a narrower west hall with a room beyond,
a dining room on the east with a low-ceilinged kitchen and mezzanine beyond— are all nearly
square, with slight variations in proportion and placement of openings. It is said that at
least two similar fine houses in the area were built (later) by the same man, a Mr. Smith.

He seems to have been a fine but unostentatious craftsman.

GPO 892 455
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Green, T.M. Historic Families of Kentucky. Cincinnati: Robert Clarke & Co., 1889.

"General Percival Butler and General William O. Butler. " The Biographical Encyclopedia
of Kentucky of the Dead and Living Men of the Nineteenth Century. Cincinnati: J. M. Arm-
strong & Co., 1878, p. 37.

"General William Orlando Butler.” Dictionary of American Biography™ p. 371.
Historic Homes of Carroll County (Pamphlet).

Popular Portraits with Pen and PenciUl 848.

The Courier~Journal Magazine. (Louisville, Ky.) July 24, 1975.

Additional information from Mrs. Rex Diuguid and Miss Mary Masterson, Carrollton,
Kentucky.
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401 Wapping Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

January 13, 1976

received

Dr. William J. Murtagh, Keeper .
. . . . national
National Register of Historic Places register

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

Washington, D. C. 20240
Dear Dr. Murtagh:

The following nominations to the National Register of Historic Places were
approved at the State level by the Kentucky Historic Preservation Review Board on the
dates indicated. As State Historic Preservation Officer, | recommend they be entered
on the National Register. Additional comments on the status of the sites may be
attached to the appropriate forms.

Date Approved
Name and Location of Site(s) at State Level
General William O. Butler House, Highland Avenue October 21, 1975
Carrollton, Carroll County, Kentucky

Your early consideration of these nominations will be appreciated.

Siijc"erely yours,

Mrs. Eldred W. Melton
State Historic Preservation Officer

Enclosures (see List of Attachments)



Dr. Murtagh
Page 2
January 13,1976

List of Attachments

General William Q. Butler House, Highland Avenue, Carrollton, Carroll County, Kentucky

National Register of Historic Places Nomination Form (10-300)
Five Continuation Sheets (10-300a)

Two Maps and Forms (10-301)

Five Photographs and Forms (10-301a)

cc: Mrs. Elizabeth L. Diuguid
Miss Mary Masterson
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